Public Document Pack



Mrs Annwen Morgan
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive
CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices
LLANGEFNI
Ynys Môn - Anglesey
LL77 7TW

Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500 Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839

#RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD	NOTICE OF MEETING
PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A GORCHMYNION	PLANNING AND ORDERS COMMITTEE
DYDD MERCHER, 20 MAI, 2020 am 1.00 o'r gloch	WEDNESDAY, 20 MAY 2020 at 1.00 pm
CYFARFOD RHITHIOL (AR HYN O BRYD NID OES MODD I'R CYHOEDD FYNYCHU'R CYFARFOD)	THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING (AT PRESENT MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING)
SWWAAAA DWWIIAAF	en Hughes Committee Officer

AELODAU / MEMBERS

Cynghorwyr / Councillors:

John Griffith
Glyn Haynes
T LI Hughes MBE
K P Hughes
Vaughan Hughes
Richard O Jones (Is-Gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
Eric Wyn Jones
Bryan Owen
Dafydd Roberts
Nicola Roberts (Cadeirydd/Chair)
Robin Williams

Agenda

THIS IS A VIRTUAL MEETING (AT PRESENT MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING)

AELODAU'R PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A GORCHMYNION / MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND ORDERS COMMITTEE

Cynghorwyr / Councillors:

John Griffith
Glyn Haynes
T LI Hughes MBE
K P Hughes
Vaughan Hughes
Richard O Jones (Is-Gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)
Eric Wyn Jones
Bryan Owen
Dafydd Roberts
Nicola Roberts (Cadeirydd/Chair)
Robin Williams

1 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

2 APOLOGIES

3 MINUTES_(Pages 1 - 8)

To submit, for confirmation, the minutes of the meeting held on 4 March, 2020.

4 DELEGATION TO THE CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER OF THE COMMITTEE'S POWERS TO MAKE DECISIONS DURING THE PERIOD OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC_(Pages 9 - 10)

To submit a report by the Director of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer.

Planning and Orders Committee

Minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Nicola Roberts (Chair)

Councillor Richard Owain Jones (Vice-Chair)

Councillors John Griffith, Glyn Haynes, K P Hughes,

Vaughan Hughes, Eric Wyn Jones, Bryan Owen, Dafydd Roberts

and Robin Williams.

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Enforcement Manager (SO),

Senior Planning Officer (GJ),

Development Control Engineer (Highways)(JAR),

Planning Assistants,

Legal Services Manager (RJ), Committee Officer (MEH).

APOLOGIES: None

ALSO PRESENT: Local Members: Councillor Margaret M Roberts (application 12.1).

Councillor Llinos M Huws – Leader of the Council

1 APOLOGIES

None received.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

No declaration of interest received.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee held on 5 February, 2020 were presented and confirmed as correct.

4 SITE VISITS

The minutes of the planning site visit held on 19 February, 2020 were confirmed.

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING

There were public speakers in respect of applications 7.1 and 12.2

6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED

6.1 19C1231 – Outline application for the erection of 32 market dwellings and 4 affordable dwellings, construction of new vehicular and pedestrian access, provision of play area and open spaces together with full details of access and layout on land adjacent to Cae Rhos Estate, Porthdafarch Road, Holyhead

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as it had been referred to Committee by Local Members. At its meeting on 8 January, 2020 the Committee resolved to visit the application site before determining the application. The site was visited on 22 January, 2020.

The Planning Enforcement Manager reported that the response of the Highways Authority is still awaited as regards to traffic and parking survey. He further said that following reference by a member of the public, Natural Resources Wales has drawn the Authority's attention that a badger sett exists in close proximity of the application site and which has not been identified within the ecological survey submitted with the planning application. Additional ecological information will therefore be required. The recommendation to the Committee was to defer determination of the application.

It was RESOLVED to defer consideration of the application for the reasons given and in accordance with the Officer's recommendation.

7 APPLICATIONS ARISING

7.1 FPL/2019/253 – Full application for the conversion of outbuildings into two holiday units which includes alterations and extensions together with the installation of a package treatment plant at Penfor, Church Bay

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a Local Member. At its meeting on 5 February, 2020 the Committee resolved to visit the application site before determining the application. The site was visited on 19 February, 2020.

Public Speaker

Mr Wharmby (applicant) said that the mill and granary on site is of poor condition and without investment it is likely that the buildings will subside. The conversion of these outbuildings and mill to self-serviced holiday use will preserve such buildings that may be lost if investments is not generated to convert them. He further said that there have been concerns as to overlooking on neighbouring properties and amended plans have been submitted to mitigate local concerns. Mr Wharmby referred to concerns as regards to the impact of increased traffic during construction and operation of the holiday unit but noted that he considered that the extra traffic will not be substantial.

Councillor John Griffith questioned as to the purpose of conversions of the outbuildings at Penfor, Church Bay and whether the application could give

assurance that he would not be living in the properties. Mr Wharmby responded that planning policies prohibits residential use of the properties and they must be holiday accommodation. Councillor Griffith further expressed the view that the single track road to the site is narrow and the visibility at the nearby junction is poor; he questioned if the applicant intended to upgrade the road and access due to increased use from the development. Mr Wharmby responded that a Traffic Study has shown that only one accident has occurred within a ten mile radius to the site during the last 20 years. He further said that he is not the owner of the hedgerows near the junction therefore he would be unable to cut them down to improve the visibility splay of the junction.

The Planning Enforcement Manager reported that Listed Building Consent has already been granted for the building on site and no objections have been received by the statutory consultees as regards to the proposed application. The recommendation is of approval of the application subject to the Highways Authority's response that conditional approval be afforded; that car parking provision be on site and the submission of a construction traffic management plan be submitted and approved before commencement of the development.

Councillor K P Hughes said that he was satisfied that the applicant had addressed the issue of overlooking on neighbouring properties. He referred to the local concerns as regards to the unclassified road to the proposed site which is a public footpath with no passing bays and the refuse lorry is unable to access. Councillor Hughes questioned if the visibility splay of the T-junction is sufficient. The Development Control Engineer (Highways) responded that following the submission of a Transport Assessment the Highways Authority are satisfied that the impact of the development on the surrounding road network will be minimal due to the low speed of traffic near the junction and there has been no incidents of accidents recorded. He further said that a Construction Traffic Management Plan has been requested as part of the proposed development.

Councillor Robin Williams proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Vaughan Hughes seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to additional conditions as regards to car parking provision on site and the submission and approval of a construction traffic management plan before commencement of the development.

8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS

10.1 VAR/2019/92 – Application under Section 73 for the variation of condition (08) of planning permission reference 33C265 (Conversion of outbuilding) so as to allow amended design at Glan Morfa, Gaerwen

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the proposal is contrary to policies of the Joint Local Development Plan but which the Local Planning Authority is minded to approve.

The Senior Planning Officer reported that the principle of developing the site has already been established under the previous Local Development Plan and works commenced on the new access in August 2010; it is considered that the previous planning permission has been safeguarded. She further said that the application before the Committee is for the variation of condition (08) of the previous planning approval which entails amendments to the design with the removal of some windows and inserting new windows and changing some windows previously approved together with erection of a small extension.

Councillor Eric W Jones proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Dafydd Roberts seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report.

11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

11.1 FPL/2020/3 – Full application for alterations and extensions including annex together with extension to curtilage at Parciau Llanddaniel

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the applicants are relevant Officers working within the Planning Service. In accordance with the Council's Constitution the application has been scrutinised by the Council's Monitoring Officer.

The Planning Enforcement Manager reported that no objections have been submitted by the statutory consultees in respect of this application. The application conforms to planning policies with regard to design of the dwelling and no objections have been received during the statutory public consultation. The recommendation is of approval of the application subject to a condition restricting the use of the annexe for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the dwelling.

Councillor Eric W Jones proposed that the application be approved and Councillor K P Hughes seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to conditions contained within the written report.

12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS

12.1 HHP/2019/301 – Retrospective application for alterations and extensions including terraced area, swimming pool and games room together with erection of domestic shed at Tan y Fron, Pentraeth

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee at the request of a Local Member.

Councillor Margaret M Roberts, a Local Member, said that she did not want to object to the recommendation of the Officer of approval of the application. She noted that the Clerk of the Pentraeth Community Council has written to the Welsh Government expressing anger to the way the applicant has disregarded the notice by the Planning Officers to cease the building works on the site until the planning application has been before the Planning and Orders Committee. She said that, in her opinion and the opinion of the Pentraeth Community Council such retrospective application undermines the planning process and is unfair to the majority of people who respect the process. Councillor Roberts asked the Committee to put pressure on the Welsh Government to prohibit retrospective applications as it undermines the Planning Authority and the Planning Committee.

The Planning Enforcement Manager reported that there is an element of the application which is retrospective however the principle of developing the site has already been established under the previous planning approval for the erection of a new dwelling. Discussions have been undertaken with the applicant, Planning Case Officer and the Landscape Officer to agree on the acceptable design and size of the dwelling at Tan y Fron, Pentraeth which has been submitted to this Committee. The amendments to the plans are considered acceptable by the Planning Authority.

Councillor K P Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Bryan Owen seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report.

12.2 FPL/2019/341 – Full application for the erection of 26 dwellings (3 affordable), alterations to existing vehicular access together with associated works at Llaingoch Primary School, South Stack Road, Holyhead

The application was reported to the Planning and Orders Committee as the application is made on land within the Council's ownership.

Public Speaker

A representative from Cadnant Planning (applicant's agent) said the proposed development is for the erection of 26 dwellings with one, two and four bedroom dwellings which conform with the need for social housing in the area. The proposed development also conforms to Policy TAI1 of the Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP). She said that if the proposed development was approved it is anticipated the completion of the development would be May 2021 and the units will be transferred to the local authority for a social housing scheme. The affordable housing units will be constructed using Welsh Government affordable housing grant funding which needs planning approval to allow the dwellings to remain as social housing. The site will be landscaped and a large area of communal open space will be afforded. She further said that there have been matters raised during the consultation period and on this basis the Planning Officers are seeking delegated powers to deal with the additional information which has recently been submitted by the developer which includes a detailed landscaping plan, ecology report and distances of the proposed dwellings to neighbouring properties. It is considered that the proposed development will be in-keeping with the character of the local area. The financial contribution sought towards sports pitches will be paid to the Town Council.

Councillor Glyn Haynes said that there has been no objection locally to the proposed development but he questioned as to the total amount of financial contribution will be afforded towards sporting pitches. The representative from Cadnant Planning responded that a financial contribution of £8,050 will be paid towards sporting pitches in Holyhead due to the lack of such facilities within the locality.

The Planning Enforcement Manager gave details of the application and updated the Committee that the Highways Authority seeks a conditional approval of the application and that a financial contribution be sought towards a Traffic Regulation Order. A financial contribution is also required towards affordable dwellings provision before discharge of the planning approval. Furthermore, delegated powers be afforded to the Officer's to amend planning conditions taking into account the amended plans/additional information and the comments of statutory consultees on these details.

Councillor K P Hughes proposed that the application be approved and Councillor Robin Williams seconded the proposal.

It was RESOLVED to approve the application in accordance with the Officer's recommendation subject to the conditions contained within the written report together with:-

- a financial contribution towards a Traffic Regulation Order and highway improvements before discharge of the planning approval;
- a financial contribution towards affordable dwellings provision before discharge of the planning approval;

 that delegated powers be afforded to the Officer's to amend planning conditions taking into account the amended plans/additional information and the comments of statutory consultees on these details.

13 OTHER MATTERS

None were considered by this meeting of the Planning and Orders Committee.

Additional item considered with the consent of the Chair.

RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATIONS

Discussions were undertaken as regards to retrospective applications and the Committee **AGREED** to ask the Portfolio Holder for Planning to write to the Welsh Government expressing strong dissatisfaction as regards to the retrospective planning applications process. The Committee also asked the Planning Officer to raise the issue at the next Wales Enforcement Conference.

COUNCILLOR NICOLA ROBERTS
CHAIR



PLANNING AND ORDERS COMMITTEE	
COMMITTEE:	PLANNING AND ORDERS
DATE:	20 MAY 2020
TITLE OF REPORT:	DELEGATION TO CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER
PURPOSE OF THE REPORT:	TO DELEGATE TO THE CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER THE COMMITTEE'S POWERS TO MAKE DECISIONS DURING THE PERIOD OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
REPORT BY:	DIRECTOR OF FUNCTION (COUNCIL BUSINESS)/MONITORING OFFICER
ACTION:	DECISION TO DELEGATE FOR A LIMITED PERIOD

INTRODUCTION

1.1 In light of the public health emergency caused by the coronavirus and the restrictions on holding public meetings, there is still a need to maintain a planning service and to make decisions on planning matters. To facilitate this during the period of restrictions, the Planning and Orders Committee (the Committee) is invited to make the decisions below.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

- 2.1 To delegate to the Council's Chief Planning Officer the right to make all decisons which are reserved to the Committee under the Council's Constitution, be that under paragraphs 3.4.3.1 to 3.4.3.16 (inclusive) or elsewhere;
- 2.2 That this delegation remain in force whilst the restrictions on holding public meetings are in place, but that it shall be reviewed every month by the Chief Planning Officer in consultation with Group Leaders (or their nominees) and senior officers so as to gauge its effectiveness;
- 2.3 In respect of those applications already called-in to the Committee by local members, no decision will be made under this delegation until those local members have been given a further, reasonable opportunity to make specific comments in writing in respect of that application before a certain date. The Chief Planning Officer will take due regard of those comments before exercising his delegated power in respect of that application;
- 2.4 In lieu of public speaking at the Committee, the Chief Planning Officer will notify all those members of the public who have commented on an application which he proposes to determine under this delegation. He will invite those members of the public to make further written representations by a specified date and will take due

552334 Tudalen 1

- regard of those further written representations before exercising his delegated powers in respect of that application;
- 2.5 Where the Chief Planning Officer has the power to determine an application under this delegation he may, nevertheless and for whatever reason, choose not to exercise that power and, in that case, the application will have to be determined by the Committee. The Chief Planning Officer will take into account the views of those mentioned in paragraph 2.2 above in reaching his decision under this paragraph;
- 2.6 That the delegation shall automatically fall into abeyance once a summons is published for the Committee to again meet in person in the Council Chamber but, if such a meeting is cancelled or does not take place, for whatever reason, this delegation shall be revived and acted upon by the Chief Planning Officer until the time that such a meeting is held;
- 2.7 That the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee are notified in a timely manner of any decisions made under this delegation;
- 2.8 That a training session is arranged before the next meeting of the Committee held in person in the Council Chamber so that members and officers can re-familiarise themselves with the Committee's usual procedures and relevant requirements.